
CITY OF LONG BEACH 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MARINE 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION MINUTES 
JUNE 19, 2008 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER
 

The Parks and Recreation Commission meeting was called to order by Harry 
Saltzgaver, President, at 9:01 a.m., at the El Dorado Park West Community Center, in 
the Senior Center Library.  Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine, took 
roll call and confirmed a quorum. 

 
Present: Harry Saltzgaver, President  
  Drew Satariano, Vice President 
  Simon George 
  Albert Guerra 

 Bob Livingstone  
 Sarah Sangmeister 
 Brett Waterfield 

   
Absent: none 
 
Staff:  Phil Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine 

Tom Shippey, Manager of Maintenance Operations 
Dennis Eschen, Manager of Planning and Development 
Tara Yeats, Financial Services Officer 
Sherri Nixon-Joiner, General Superintendent of Community Recreation Services 
Robin Black, Executive Assistant to the Director 

 
Guests: Mitch Bidrawn, RC Planes 
  Craig Chalfant, Development Services 
  Mona DeLeon, LSA 
  Kim Garvey, Moffatt & Nichol 
  Eric Lopez, Community Development 
  Mary Parcell, Audubon Society 
  Lindsey Fitch, Audubon Society 
 

 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MAY 15, 2008
 

It was moved by Commissioner Livingstone and seconded by Vice 
President Satariano to approve the May 15, 2008 Parks and Recreation 
Commission minutes.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 2 
 
 
III. COMMISSION ACTION ITEMS 
 
 #08-0601 

Recommendation to authorize the Community Recreation Services Bureau Manager 
or his or her management designee to execute the Personal Services and Instruction 
Agreements and amend Attachment “A” of the agreements as needed. 

 
President Saltzgaver stated that there were no personal services/instruction 
agreements this month. 

 
#08-0602 
Recommendation to authorize the execution of a Youth League Permit Including 
Concession Stand with the Long Beach Soccer Club and Long Beach Youth Soccer 
League for nonexclusive use of sports fields for a term of three years, expiring 
February 29, 2011. 

 
  Commissioner Livingstone asked if this would set a precedent. 
 

Mr. Hester responded that all youth leagues are on the same schedule and this 
would bring these two leagues in line with the rest.  We have the ability to go 
back and change the permits. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Livingstone and seconded by 
Commissioner Waterfield to approve the recommendation.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
 #08-0603 

Recommendation to authorize the Department Director to execute picnic service 
concession permits with Character’s Kids Love, Inc., James Productions, Inc., and 
Posh Productions, Inc., for a three-year term through June 30, 2011, with one two-year 
option for renewal at the discretion of the Department Director. 
 

A motion was made by Vice President Satariano and seconded by 
Commissioner Sangmeister to approve the recommendation.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
 #08-0604 

Recommendation to approve the placement and installation of the memorial bench to 
honor Jack Rabin, M.D. 

 
Mr. Hester stated that this request is consistent with other memorial benches.  
The requester will pay the full cost of the bench. 

 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 3 
 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Guerra and seconded by 
Commissioner Sangmeister to approve the recommendation.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
 #08-0605 

Recommendation to authorize the execution of a permit for the operation of a picnic 
service concession with All Suite Marketing dba International Events, for a term of one 
year expiring on June 18, 2009, with options for renewal subject to the discretion of the 
Director. 

 
Ms. Tara Yeats stated that this is a new company so their term will expire in one 
year.  Their permit will be renewed after one year, depending on their 
performance. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Livingstone and seconded by 
Commissioner Sangmeister to approve the recommendation.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
  President Saltzgaver said that item VIII, C would be moved up on the agenda. 
 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

C. Recommendation to the Planning Commission and City Council that they certify 
the Draft EIR for the Colorado Lagoon Restoration Project, State Clearinghouse 
#2007111034. 

 
Mr. Eschen introduced Erick Lopez with Community Development, Mona 
DeLeon with LSA, and Kim Garvey with Mofatt & Nichol. 

 
Mr. Lopez gave a presentation of the Colorado Lagoon, the estuary 
habitat, and the storm flows.  He said that there is currently a nine-foot 
culvert that keeps the Colorado Lagoon connected to Marine Stadium.  
He described the poor water quality in the Colorado Lagoon and then 
went over the proposed improvements. 

 
Ms. DeLeon talked about environmental impacts of the project and the 
negative impacts during construction.  She said that they would maintain 
communication with the neighborhood and would hold a community 
meeting for each of the two phases and provide information on what was 
going to be happening.  She also talked about the positive impacts of the 
changes of the completed project.  She mentioned that Phase II would 
consist of an open channel to allow for better water flow from the 
Colorado Lagoon to Marine Stadium and would allow for better water 
quality in the Colorado Lagoon.  She said that the channel would be 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 4 
 
 

monitored to see if a lifeguard is needed.  She said that the sports 
leagues that play at Marina Vista Park would need to find other locations 
to play during Phase II.  She said that they would make sure that there 
would be a traffic plan in place.  Ms. DeLeon went over three other 
alternatives to the plan.  She said that the draft EIR is out for review.  
The next step is to get comments from citizens.  The comment deadline 
is July 11 and that they would work on responding to the comments this 
summer.  They would then bring a final document to the Planning 
Commission in a public hearing. 

 
President Saltzgaver asked if there was any public comment to this item.  
There was no public comment.   
 
President Saltzgaver asked for any comments or questions from the 
Commissioners. 

 
Commissioner Livingstone said that they would be getting rid of two 
parking lots and he asked if there was going to be more parking and 
where would it be, now that more people might want to go to the 
Colorado Lagoon? 

 
Ms. DeLeon responded that they would remove the north parking lot 
only.  That is the only parking lot that is going to be removed.  She said 
that they looked at the lot last August on Wednesdays, Fridays and 
Saturdays and the most number of vehicles in that lot at one time was 
37.  There is room for parking at the lot on Appian Way and Colorado 
Street and there is also room at the lot across the street. 

 
Commissioner Sangmeister said that Mothers Beach is packed and she 
would expect to see a lot of movement from that beach to this beach.  
She said she would be concerned about the parking impact because 
they will do such a great job and more people will want to come to the 
Lagoon. 

 
Commissioner Guerra said that he was wondering about the youth 
groups that use Marina Vista Park.  He asked if there was parking all 
around the edge? 

 
Mr. Hester responded that there is parking along the edge of the park.  

 
Commissioner Guerra asked if there is fencing around that park. 

 
Mr. Shippey responded that there is a backstop for the ballfield by Eliot 
Street, but no fencing. 

 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 5 
 
 

Mr. Eschen stated that the drawing is deceptive.  The field is 20 feet from 
the road. 

 
Commissioner Waterfield said that he had a question about the channel.  
Since it divides the park, has there been any consideration for walkways 
across it?  There are bridges at the end, but with a lot of youth activities, 
the channel might be a tempting place to go exploring. 
 
Mr. Hester responded that there are walkways along the top of the 
channel that people would be encouraged to use. 

 
Commissioner Sangmeister asked how deep the channel would be and if 
it would be navigable.   

 
Mr. Eschen responded that it is designed to have enough water to be 
able to kayak through it.  Currently, there are no boats allowed in the 
Colorado Lagoon, so they would have to consider if they want boats in 
the Lagoon.  

 
Commissioner Sangmeister said that if you want kayaks and boats in the 
channel, would determine how deep it would be, so this also needs to be 
a consideration. 

 
Vice President Satariano said that they discussed this project pretty 
extensively in the Capital Improvement Committee meeting. 

 
President Saltzgaver said that about two acres of recreational land is 
going to be removed and about three tenths of an acre of a passive park, 
when the channel is made.  This is a land use issue that we need to deal 
with.  How do we deal with this loss of park land? 

 
Mr. Eschen said that the parks in perpetuity regulations that were 
adopted define park use vs. non-park use and park use is anything that 
is allowed in the zoning.  So whether it is passive park, whether it is 
water area in the park or a playing field, it is all treated the same under 
the parks in perpetuity charter amendment. 

 
President Saltzgaver said that this does not explain that and it might be a 
good idea if it did.  He said that the other question he had was, where is 
the Termino Avenue drain EIR process?  Is it following the same general 
schedule? 

 
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 6 
 
 

Mr. Eschen responded that the County Termino Avenue drain process 
EIR is quite a bit advanced beyond this.  They have finished the public 
circulation and have revised the EIR.  That will go before the Board of 
Supervisors either in lane June or early July. 

 
Commissioner Guerra wanted to reiterate Commissioner Waterfield’s 
comment to look into a bridge crossing over in the middle of the park. 

 
Mr. Hester asked how much flexibility there is in the channel layout as it 
goes across the park? 

 
Ms. DeLeon responded that there is an alternate route in the EIR. 

 
President Saltzgaver asked the dimensions of the culvert. 

 
Ms. DeLeon responded that there are two sections.  One is 8 foot by 12 
foot and the other is 7 foot by 14 foot. 

 
Mr. Hester stated that some modifications would also have to be made to 
the golf course.  They have discussed this with American Golf. 

 
A motion was made by Vice President Satariano and 
seconded by Commissioner Livingstone to approve the 
recommendation and include concerns that more parking 
might be needed, look into a bridge trail over the center of the 
channel, and look into the issue of parks in perpetuity, to 
replace the land being taken.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
President Saltzgaver stated that they would go back to the regular order 
of the agenda. 

 
 
IV. COMMITTEE STATUS REPORTS 
 

A. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 President Saltzgaver, Chair 
 

President Saltzgaver stated that the Committee met and discussed the 
agenda.   

 
1) Selection of Nomination Committee for 2008-2009 Officers 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 7 
 
 

President Saltzgaver appointed Commissioner Sangmeister as 
Chair and Commissioner Livingstone as Committee Member to 
the Nomination Committee. 

 
B. FINANCE AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 

President Saltzgaver, Chair 
 

President Saltzgaver stated that they had a lengthy meeting on Monday 
regarding budget and fee increases.  At the next Commission meeting 
they will have a public hearing on the fee schedule.  He asked Ms. Yeats 
to comment on that meeting. 

 
Ms. Yeats said that they went over the City Manager’s proposed budget 
cuts for the Department, which will become public on August 1.  At that 
time, we will bring that to the Parks and Recreation Commission.  We 
also discussed the staff’s fee recommendations and the Committee’s 
insights and recommendations and made a few changes.  The changes 
will be sent to the Committee and once they approve it, will be brought 
before the entire Parks and Recreation Commission for action. 

 
Ms. Yeats said that they also discussed the policies that the Commission 
had requested be either reviewed or drafted.  She said that a fee waiver 
policy and an appeal process for permits, fees, and waivers have been 
drafted and are in the review process with staff.  The cost recover policy 
was reviewed, updated and is being reviewed with staff and will come 
back to the Committee.   

 
President Saltzgaver said it is also the recommendation of the Finance 
and Appeals Committee that, due to the fact that there are going to be 
some new fees, the youth groups be informed of the fee hearing.   

 
Commissioner Guerra asked that a copy of the draft be e-mailed to him, 
since he was unable to attend the meeting. 

 
C. PARK SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Commissioner George, Chair 
 

Commissioner George and that the Committee did not meet.   
 

Ms. Nixon-Joiner stated that Mr. Greco is sick today and unable to attend 
the meeting.  She distributed specific statistics requested at the last 
Committee meeting. 

 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 8 
 
 
 D. MARKETING AND CUSTOMER SERVICE COMMITTEE 

Commissioner Guerra, Chair 
 

Commissioner Guerra stated that the Committee met this morning and 
had a visitor from a Los Angeles Sustainability Committee, who wanted 
to see how a committee functions.  They viewed three commercials, to 
be run on Charter Cable TV, on the activities offered by the Department. 

 
E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 

Vice President Satariano, Chair 
 

Vice President Satariano stated that the Committee held a special 
meeting to discuss the Colorado Lagoon project. 

 
F. CITY SCHOOLS/JOINT COMMITTEE 

Commissioner Tong Sangmeister, Chair 
 

Commissioner Sangmeister stated that the Committee met and they had 
quite a bit of people attend from Long Beach Unified School District.   

 
Ms. Yeats said that Mr. Squires provided her with information that the 
report has been drafted and is sitting with Long Beach Unified School 
District waiting for their action or comment back. 

 
President Saltzgaver said that he continues to wonder about the 
structure of the Committee.  He is not sure what the value of having 
Commissioners on the Committee is when there is not a School Board 
member on the Committee.  The Committee is designed specifically to 
deal with interrelated technicalities of how we deal with events.  This is 
an important thing to do, but he wants to be reassured that it is worth the 
Commissioner’s time. 

 
1) Discussion of letter to LBUSD concerning presentation on School 

Master Plan. 
 

President Saltzgaver said that the Executive Committee 
discussed asking for a presentation of what the School District 
considers to be their master plan.  He is recommending that we 
write a letter to Long Beach Unified School District asking that 
they make a presentation to this Commission on their facility plan. 

 
Commissioner Waterfield said that he thought the letter should 
emphasize things that are significant to our relationship.  We talk 
about the facilities and things that are sometimes not really 
relevant to what we have been able to raise. 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 9 
 
 

President Saltzgaver said that speaking of closing of facilities, we 
need to make sure that we have first right of refusal for those 
properties, particular for a school that is adjacent to a park.  That 
would be a good acquisition. 

 
President Saltzgaver requested the Director to write the letter to 
LBUSD. 

 
 G. SPECIAL EVENTS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE 

Commissioner Livingstone, Chair 
 

1) Working Plan 
 

Commissioner Livingstone said that included in the packet was 
the working plan that the Committee came up with.  He 
complemented staff for putting this together.  This is what we are 
trying to use to make sure that we keep focused on trying to have 
a consistent approach for stakeholders, which are the residents, 
the City as it tries to make money on special events, and the 
people coming to special events.  The Committee met two months 
in a row and at the last meeting they discussed a pilot program for 
allowing events in the parks to have alcohol.  That has been 
forwarded to the City Attorney with our comments and concerns.  
They also developed a proposed program for carnivals and 
circuses.  They were going to check with Mr. Hester on what he 
wanted them to look at with barbecues. 

 
Mr. Hester responded that he would like them to look at whether 
the Department should look at other alternatives rather than 
allowing barbecues, which create air quality and pollution issues.  
Some cities have gone to allowing only gas barbecues, for 
instance.  He said that he thinks it is worth taking a look at that 
and seeing what other cities are doing. 

 
Commissioner Livingstone said that the only other thing that 
would be coming up was some new policies from Community 
Recreation Services Bureau regarding programs. 

 
Ms. Nixon-Joiner responded that they keep adding information 
and taking it back to the City Attorney.  Hopefully, a final draft will 
be ready by the next meeting. 

 
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 10 
 
 

President Saltzgaver said that since Geoff Hall left the 
Department he hasn’t heard of any update to policies regulating 
dog handlers in the dog park and hasn’t heard anything from the 
dog park users.  This item has been left alone. 

 
 
V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO COMMISSION
 

A. Recommendation to receive and file the Director’s Monthly Highlights Report for 
May 2008. 

 
President Saltzgaver asked for any questions on the monthly report.  
There were none. 

 
It was moved by Vice President Satariano and seconded by 
Commissioner Livingstone to receive and file the Director’s 
Monthly Report for May 2008.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 
VI. CORRESPONDENCE
 

A. Appeal of Parks and Recreation Commission decision to authorize the 
development of a cricket ground in El Dorado Regional Park from Ann Cantrell. 

 
President Saltzgaver stated that a copy of Ms. Ann Cantrell’s appeal 
letter regarding the Commission’s action last month on the cricket field, is 
included in the packet.  That appeal goes to the City Council.   

 
Mr. Hester stated that the hearing has been set for July 8, 2008. 

 
President Saltzgaver asked if it would be a good idea to have the Chair 
to attend that meeting. 

 
Mr. Hester responded that it probably would be a good idea to have a 
representative of the Parks and Recreation Commission attend that 
meeting.  He said that the staff report should answer any questions. 

 
B. Request to amend the Department’s policy of not hiring family members from 

Elene Daley. 
 

President Saltzgaver said that this item was discussed in the Executive 
Committee meeting.  He said that there is some justification for reviewing 
the policy.  The proper action would be to act the Director to review the 
hiring policy and come back to the Commission with a report. 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 11 
 
 

Mr. Hester said he wanted to make sure it was clear that the Parks and 
Recreation Commission has no authority over any personnel issues.  He 
said that it was brought forward because the individual submitted the 
letter to the Parks and Recreation Commission, so it was listed as 
correspondence.  There were some questions raised by the Executive 
Committee and staff wants to hear those comments to decide what 
changes to make.  It is an old policy that does need to be looked at. 

 
President Saltzgaver said that he wants to be aware of what is going on, 
when we get letters like this. 

 
Ms. Nixon-Joiner responded that the Department had major operational 
issues that were occurring and that was the reason the policy came 
about, back when it was created.  It is very difficult to adhere to 
guidelines and keep people out of the line of supervision when you are in 
one bureau.  Because of some of the issues when people would get 
hired and further down the line they would end up under a sibling or 
relative, it created so many operational issues and personnel issues, that 
is why the policy was created back in 1992.  That has not changed.  The 
reasons that created this policy are still in effect today.  It is the 
movement of staff that creates the problem.  If you allow that, it is very 
possible that someplace years later on, that person could end up in the 
line of supervision or in the same division as their relative. 

 
Commissioner Livingstone said that in one of the notes it says that this is 
the only department that has this policy.  Is it because the Department is 
so big with so many bureaus? 

 
Mr. Hester said that most of the policies are geared toward part-time 
staff.  This woman has another daughter who works for the Department 
in an aquatics camp. 

 
Ms. Nixon-Joiner said that the employee had another sibling who worked 
for the Department who we removed from payroll so the other sibling 
could be hired last year. 

 
Mr. Hester said that even though employees may start out at different 
locations, we move employees around all the time and they could end up 
one supervising the other.  That is when we have issues relating to 
preferential treatment, etc.  We had to let a couple of employees go 
because we found out that they falsified their employment application 
and they were actually siblings. 

 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 12 
 
 

President Saltzgaver rescinded his recommendation and asked if the 
Department does decide to change the policy, to please inform the Parks 
and Recreation Commission. 

 
President Saltzgaver stated that he received a letter at his office 
addressed to him as the President of the Parks and Recreation 
Commission.  He said obviously they have nothing to do with kite 
boarders, because they are in the tidelands area.  He gave the letter to 
Mr. Hester to respond to. 

 
 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 A. PARTNERS OF PARKS REPORT – DIANE WILEY 
 

President Saltzgaver said that Ms. Wiley asked to be excused to prepare 
for their Board meeting.  He asked Commissioner Livingstone to report. 

 
Commissioner Livingstone said that they held the mixer last month and 
have three very interested potential board members who may be at 
today’s Board meeting.  Ms. Wiley is preparing a general membership 
campaign and a business partners campaign, with the cooperation of the 
Chamber of Commerce to try and generate people who have an annual 
membership and can help produce new members and partners.  They 
are pursuing grants for both operating expenses and for specific 
programs like the Universally Accessible Playgrounds and the Lone 
Sailor refurbishment.  Ms. Wiley and Mr. Held are preparing displays and 
presentation materials that they can take to any kind of association 
mixers or events so that they will have a presence as often as possible to 
let people know about joining or donating to Partners of Parks.  We are 
going to have a retreat, probably in September.  It is a goal once we 
have a full complement of new board members, is to develop a strategic 
plan and long term action plan. 

 
President Saltzgaver asked the status of their leadership. 

 
Commissioner Livingstone responded that the Board is going to have an 
election today.  Mr. Kozaites agreed to be a president for about two 
years and because of work and family he has had to step down. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 13 
 
 

B. Recommendation to approve the California Sun & Surf International Soccer 
Tournament request for waiver of concession and field permit fees with 
“Conditions of Use.” 

 
President Saltzgaver stated that at the last meeting, the representatives 
for the tournament were not in attendance.  The Commission asked to 
have a meeting with representatives, which was held following the June 
Executive Committee meeting, and was a very productive meeting.  He 
said that since Commissioner Waterfield requested this meeting, he 
asked Commissioner Waterfield to offer his comments. 

 
Commissioner Waterfield said there were some things that needed to be 
clarified, such as the ownership and sponsorship of the tournament, to 
make sure that it is a tournament that is benefiting youth in the area.  He 
also brought up the issue that the Parks and Recreation Commission is 
in a tough position to waive fees now and this is a large fee waiver, so 
they needed additional information to be able to justify the waiver.  A lot 
of the questions were answered.  Mr. Barraza is going to provide some 
additional background information that they requested.  One in particular 
was a list of names of the beneficiaries of the tournament and what Long 
Beach agencies would be benefiting from that.  Mr. Hester was clear in 
letting Mr. Barraza know that we are not in a situation to be able to 
continue to waive fees and came up with a recovery plan to make 
contributions back to Partners of Parks, which will be increasing each 
year to get it up to about 80 percent of the amount of the fee that is 
waived.  Commissioner Waterfield said that he was satisfied with the 
information from the meeting. 

 
Vice President Satariano thanked Commissioner Waterfield for leading 
the conversation.  He had a lot of background and knowledge about 
soccer, which helped.  The organizers provided good answers and the 
point was made that waiving fees is not something to be done very often. 

 
Mr. Hester recommended that the increase in donations be incorporated 
into the recommendation of the Commission. 

 
President Saltzgaver said that the condition he suggested, and was 
agreed to, was to increase the percentage by ten percent each of the 
next three years. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 14 
 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Livingstone and 
seconded by Vice President Satariano to approve the 
recommendation and include a condition of use to increase 
the amount donated to Partners of Parks by ten percent each 
year over the next three years, up to an amount of 80 percent 
of the fee that is waived.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Sangmeister wanted to make sure that staff would receive 
the accounting document from the group after the tournament. 

 
Commissioner Waterfield thought that the original letter mentioned a 
listing of demographics, where the players are coming from. 

 
Mr. Hester said that the listing of demographics could be included in the 
permit.  He also said that he would talk to staff about California Sun & 
Surf using a company who distributes notifications to neighborhoods, to 
make sure that this is done, especially in the area around Heartwell Park. 

 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Report on Summer Recreation Programs 
 

Ms. Nixon-Joiner distributed packets to each of the Commissioners filled 
with brochures of the Department’s summer programs.  She mentioned 
that the summer programs started this week and staff is very, very busy.  
She described each of the programs.  Ms. Nixon-Joiner said that they 
took a different approach this summer.  The Department sent out the 
class schedules to people who have participated in classes in the past.  
Postcards for the day camps were sent out targeting youth areas.  The 
family series tri-fold brochure was sent to out to all homes in the 
community.  This brochure lists the movies in the park and movies on the 
beach.  She said that included in the packet is also an invitation for the 
opening this Saturday of the Congresswoman Juanita Millender 
McDonald Community Center. 

 
B. Presentation of “Core” Programs for the FY09 Budget  

 
President Saltzgaver said that this item would be held until next month. 

 
Mr. Hester stated that he requested that this item be held because the 
budget has not been made public yet.  It goes to the Mayor on July 1, 
and will not become officially public until August 1. 

 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 15 
 
 
IX. COMMENTS 
 

A. AUDIENCE 
 

President Saltzgaver asked for comments from the audience.   
 

Mr. Mitch Bidrawn said that he is a resident of Long Beach and flies 
remote control airplanes in El Dorado Area III at glider field.  He said that 
this is a really beautiful area and has a frequency board for the radios 
and there is a nice layout.  Gliders have no problems.  Electric planes 
with motors, that cost about $50 each, have a problem when they land 
and crash on the gopher holes.  He was wondering if there is a possibility 
of putting in a landing strip.  He is not asking for concrete and is not 
asking for the Department to fund it.  He said he was thinking that the 
rubber padding, like what is underneath playgrounds, would be perfect.  
He said that Southern California really lacks the room to fly and the only 
nice field nearby is in Corona.  He said that this would attract new 
hobbyists and the park would make more parking revenue. 

 
Mr. Hester asked that he leave his name and number and someone from 
Maintenance Operations would contact him. 

 
Commissioner Guerra asked the length and the width of the landing strip. 

 
Mr. Bidrawn responded that probably about 100 feet would be enough. 

 
President Saltzgaver said that if Mr. Bidrawn could talk to staff, he was 
sure that something could be worked out. 

 
Ms. Mary Parcell said that she is the conservation chair of El Dorado 
Audubon, the local chapter of the Audubon Society.  It was formed by the 
same people that advised on the formation of the Nature Center, so they 
have a strong group who also volunteer their time at the Nature Center 
and in other parks as well.  She said she is here to share a couple of 
things with the Parks and Recreation Commission.  She is here to praise 
the efforts of Mr. Phil Hester and his staff in two areas.  One area is the 
division of wetlands, wildlife habitat, how you take care of your parks, 
and today hearing about the Colorado Lagoon.  It is great to hear about 
that kind of activity at the Colorado Lagoon, the right of way, the Dunster 
Marine Reserve.  There are things like this all over Long Beach, little 
pockets along the Los Angeles River and San Gabriel River.  She said 
that in support of your Colorado Lagoon project in trying to get funding, 
they had an opportunity to hold a regional meeting with the Audubon 
staff and leadership from throughout Southern California.  They invited 
the Executive Director of the Rivers and Mountains Conservancy, who is 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 16 
 
 

also the Executive Director of the Los Cerritos Wetlands Authority, to this 
meeting.  At this meeting were leaders throughout Southern California.  
She said that they asked a lot of questions about the projects here in 
Long Beach, the West San Gabriel River wetlands project that the City is 
trying to get funds for.  They are trying to support the City’s effort to get 
funds and to show the local interest. 

 
Ms. Parcel stated that the other item is native bird habitat.  She said that 
there was an issue a few years ago at the DeForest Nature Trail where 
some brush needed to be cleaned out.  They donated 30 or 40 hours of 
expertise time and helped the park staff train the Conservation Corps so 
that they could have public safety in that park and also protect the 
habitat.  She said that she calls Mr. Hester whenever there is a problem 
that has to do with the protection with wildlife, and she really appreciates 
the help of staff and their responsiveness. 

 
Ms. Lindsey Fitch stated that she is the education chair for the Audubon 
Society and said she has a dream about making Long Beach a 
renowned bird watching location.  She said that bird watching is a big 
sport and there are different kinds of bird watchers.  There are bird 
watchers, birders, listers, and there are competitions of bird sightings.  In 
Texas they have taken advantage of this and have set up their wildlife 
areas in such a way that they pull in millions of dollars a year off of 
birders.  They put out a brochure and advertise these areas and birders 
come from all over the world.  This would be a good idea to market El 
Dorado Park as a birding destination. 

 
Ms. Parcell said that El Dorado Park is used a lot by birders from all over 
Southern California. 

 
President Saltzgaver thanked Ms. Parcell for her comments. 

 
Mr. Hester stated that staff calls on Ms. Parcell quite often for her help. 

 
Ms. Fitch stated that she is concerned with the cricket field that it breaks 
from what the master plan says and afraid it would set a precedent, 

 
Mr. Saltzgaver thanked her for her comments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting 
June 19, 2008 
Page 17 
 
 

B. STAFF 
 

President Saltzgaver asked for comments from the staff. 
 

Mr. Hester thanked the Commissioners for attending the Special 
Olympics event. 

 
 

C. COMMISSIONERS 
 
President Saltzgaver asked for comments from the Commissioners. 
 

Commissioner Sangmeister said that she would like to see what other 
cities are doing with memorial benches and maybe work with Partners of 
Parks so that more than just the actual cost is recovered. 

 
Mr. Hester responded that Partners of Parks is actually looking at this 
possibility. 

 
Commissioner Guerra thanked Bill Greco for the statistics, but he 
thought it would be helpful to look from 2003 to 2007 what the staffing 
was like.  He said that other than that, he enjoyed the Civil War 
Reenactment. 

 
 

X. NEXT MEETING 
 

President Saltzgaver stated that the next meeting would be held at 9:00 a.m., 
on Thursday, July 17, 2008, at the El Dorado Park West Community Center, in 
the Senior Center Library, 2800 Studebaker Road, Long Beach. 

 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

President Saltzgaver adjourned the meeting at 10:55 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Robin Black 
Executive Assistant to the Director 
 
c: Phil T. Hester, Director of Parks, Recreation and Marine 


	JUNE 19, 2008
	V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO COMMISSION


